
OHIO TURNPIKE AND  
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ENERGY SUPPLIER CONSULTING AND BROKERAGE SERVICES 
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ISSUE DATE 

November 9, 2017 

INQUIRY END DATE 
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DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING RFP RESPONSES: 
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ATTENTION OF RESPONDENTS IS DIRECTED TO: 

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED THROUGH THE END OF THE INQUIRY PERIOD 

-AND- 

EXTENSION OF THE SUBMISSION DEADLINE TO DECEMBER 8, 2017 
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED THROUGH THE END OF THE INQUIRY PERIOD 

Q#1 We would appreciate any insight into current risk tolerance parameters-would the 

Commission be open to sharing the power agreements that are due to expire in MAY2018, 

and the Natural Gas agreements that are due to expire in JUNE2018.  If the Commission 

cannot share these agreements, can it provide any insight as to whether or not they are fixed 

or float pricing agreements, and whether the Commission looks to price to budget, or perform 

in line with market fluctuations? 

A#1 The current agreement for electricity is fixed price and natural gas is float pricing.  

Q#2 Can the Commission share any intelligence relative to any previous Consultants that have 

provided servicing to the Commission? Is there a Consultant currently engaged by the 

Commission? 

A#2 The Commission is currently under contract with a consultant under an agreement that expires 

with its current energy supply agreements.     

Q#3 Do I list a 1099 Employee and their sub-contracting role in the Respondent SBE Utilization 

Plan? 

A#5 Disclose any subcontractors, whether they are certified or not, on the Utilization Plan. 

Q#6 Please provide us with a current electric bill that is representative of one of the 93 meter 

locations.  

A#6 A sample electric bill is provided with this response. 

Q#7 Please provide us with a natural gas bill that is representative of one of the 46 meter locations. 

A#7 A sample gas bill is provided with this response. 

Q#8 As part of our services we would want to provide replacement of your lighting system with 

LED lights. Our proposal would include financing of LED lights at 0% interest, five year 

term, off balance sheet. Should our response to your solicitation include this proposal or 

should it be subsequent to your selection of a consultant to advise the commission?  

A#8 The Commission seeks responses offering to perform the services described in the solicitation, 

which include, under Item 3, “any additional services your firm may offer and the value proposition 

for performing those services.” 
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Q#9 Are the food and gasoline service centers that provide these services to the public a part of 

the 93 electric meters? Can you provide a background, by category, for the 93 locations? This 

would help us in preparing our answer to your solicitation.  

 

A#9 Yes, the accounts service the Commission’s 14 Service Plazas, 31 Toll Plazas, 8 Maintenance 

Buildings, its Administrative Offices and numerous other miscellaneous powered facilities. 

 

 

Q#10 We provide procurement activities, though that is not our primary function. Our primary 

function is to encourage energy efficiency by advising our clients how to use energy after it is 

procured. It would be helpful to know what percent of your lighting is already LED.  

 

A#10 The Commission seeks responses offering to perform the services described in the solicitation, 

which include, under Item 3, “any additional services your firm may offer and the value proposition 

for performing those services.” 

 

 

Q#11 If we become your consultant, are we precluded from our core business, which is to assist the 

commission in becoming more energy efficient?  

 

A#11 No.  Performing the services described in the solicitation will not necessary preclude the consultant 

from performing other services on other contracts with the Commission.  Conflicts of interest are 

determined on a case by case basis.   

 

 

Q#12 I am working on submitting my information to The Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure 

Commission for the SBE Certification.  How long does it take to be approved for SBE 

Certification?  If I submit my SBE Certification by December 1st, 2017 will that be 

acceptable? 

 

A#12 A complete application should not take longer than a week to review for approval qualification; 

however, certification with the Commission, or with ODOT as SBE or DBE or with DAS as MBE 

or EDGE, is required prior to the proposal deadline to count towards achieving the goal.   

 

 

Q#13 Does my subconsultant need to be certified as an SBE with The Ohio Turnpike and 

Infrastructure Commission to receive credit towards the contract goal? 

 

A#13 Yes, please see the response to Q#12.   

 

 

Q#14 Approximately how many monthly bills does The Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure 

Commission receive for water, sewer and storm water utilities? 

 

A#14 In addition to 93 electric and 46 gas accounts, the Commission manages its utility data in 

EnergyCAP for 31 sewer accounts, 47 water service accounts and 2 storm water accounts.  Please 

see footnote 1 in the solicitation.   
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Q#15 Can the Proposal be dropped off at your office at 682 Prospect Street in Berea?  Or do you 

only accept proposals delivered by U.S. mail service? 

 

A#15 There is no required means for delivery. 

 

 

Q#16 Would it be okay to work with another consultant and respond to the RFP as a team effort. 

 

A#16 Yes, joint ventures and other teaming arrangements, including subcontracting, are acceptable.  

Disclose all entities with an interest in the proposal on the Utilization Plan, regardless of the 

certification status.  

 

 

Q#17 Will you please provide a timeline after December 1, 2017 on how the Commission intends to 

make decisions on accepting a Proposal? 

 

A#17 The Commission anticipates making a selection before March 2018. 

 

 

Q#18 Does the OTC currently use a subscription or cloud-based version of EnergyCap? 

 

A#18 The Commission uses EnergyCAP under its current consultant’s subscription agreement.  

 

 

Q#19 How are utility bills currently being entered in EnergyCap? Are bills copies scanned in or 

are billing components being entered by hand? 

 

A#19 The Commission receives the utility bills, which it then scans and emails to the Consultant.  The 

Consultant manually enters the billing information into EnergyCap and imports the scanned bill 

into the software. 

 

 

Q#20 Will the successful bidder be required to enter utility bills each month to EnergyCap? 

 

A#20 Yes. 

 

 

Q#21 Can you provide additional clarification on the data management services the OTC is 

seeking? For example, what are the data management services  OTC seeking for the water, 

sewer and storm water accounts? 

 

A#21 The services include entering the data described in the second paragraph under Part II of the 

Solicitation and reviewing EnergyCAP audits to identify and bring findings to the attention of the 

Commission’s management. 

 

 

Q#23 What is the expected or desired contract term for these Consulting services? 
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A#23 The Commission anticipates the term to coincide with the expiration dates of the energy contracts 

resulting from the consultant’s services, with the Commission having the option to renew the 

consulting agreement for an additional term.  Provided, however, the initial term will continue for 

a period of three (3) years regardless of how many successive supply agreements are in place 

during that initial period and the renewal period may not cause the total term of the consultant’s 

agreement to exceed six (6) years.   

 

 

Q#24 Does the Commission have a consultant doing this work now? 

 

A#24 Yes, see the response to Q#2.   

 

 

Q#25 Generally, how pleased is the Commission with their work? 

 

A#25 The Commission’s contract with its current consultant is expiring, and a new agreement is required 

for the Commission to continue receiving the services described in the Solicitation.  

 

 

Q#26 Is this RFP being conducted because of a requirement to do so every so often or is it driven 

by a desire for change? 

 

A#26 See the response to Q#25.  

 

 

Q#27 What type of energy pricing products does the Commission typically 

use?  Fixed?  Indexed?  A combination? 

 

A#27 See the response to Q#1.   

 

 

Q#28 Any restrictions or requirements for energy term lengths? 

 

A#28 No.  The Commission seeks to execute supply agreements that best serve its interests. 

 

 

Q#29 Is bill payment being done through the data service provider? 

 

A#29 No. 

 

 

Q#30 All things being equal, does the Commission wish to replace the current data service 

provider? 

 

A#30 The Commission has no issues with the current data systems and functionalities.  The Commission 

will entertain proposals to make a switch to another platform that provides equal or better services 

as long as an ability exists to port the data from EnergyCAP to the proposed alternative. 
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Q#31 How many years of data would be transferred to a new system? 

 

A#31 The Commission has over four years of data stored in EnergyCAP.  

 

 

Q#32 Must the SBE Utilization Plan be submitted as part of the response or turned prior to award? 

 

A#32 Provide the Utilization Certification and Plan with your response, and the demonstration of Good 

Faith Efforts if the Certification and Plan fail to demonstrate commitment to achieve the 15% Goal. 

 

 

Q#33 What is the total annual usage for electricity and natural gas?  

 

A#33 Over the past three years, the Commission has averaged 42,134,602 kWh and 77,482 Mcf per year.  

See the Introduction in the Solicitation.  

 

 

Q#34 What is the total annual spend for electricity and natural gas?   

 

A#34 A response to this question is not relevant to providing the information requested in the solicitation.    

 

 

Q#35 What is the Commission’s budget for this scope on an annual basis? 

 

A#35 A response to this question is not relevant to providing the information requested in the solicitation.    

 

 

Q#36 Is the Commission currently looking for a sub-metering solution?  Or does the Commission 

already have the sub-metering in place? 

 

A#36 No sub-metering currently exists.  The Commission’s subleased space is direct billed to the tenants 

operating the sub-units.  The Commission’s Accounting Department apportions costs to facilities 

that share a meter at the time of payment.  The Commission seeks responses offering to perform 

the services described in the solicitation, which include, under Item 3, “any additional services 

your firm may offer and the value proposition for performing those services.” 

 

 

Q#37 If the Commission currently has sub-metering, what is the percentage of accounts that have 

sub-metering? 

 

A#37 See the response to Q#36. 

 

 

Q#38 Does the Commission currently possess hourly interval load data for any of its electric 

accounts? (if so, please provide)  

 

A#38 Approximately 40% of the Commission’s facilities have “pulse meters” supporting its obligations 

under a demand response arrangement that could potentially create reports on this data but such 

information is not readily available.   
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Q#39 How many electric, gas, and water meters and sub-meters make up the approximately 93 

electric accounts, 46 gas, and 47 water accounts? 

 

A#39 Each account has its own meter. 

 

 

Q#40 How does the Commission expect for the vendor to obtain the usage data? Utility invoices or 

electronic files? If it is electronic files can the Commission please share an example of these 

files? 

 

A#40 The consultant will obtain the utility bill information for entry into the EnergyCAP software from 

the Commission in the form of .pdf copies of the monthly bills as they are processed.  The 

Commission will authorize the consultant, once selected, to obtain information from the utilities to 

obtain supplier pricing.  

 

 

Q#41 Who is currently providing these Energy brokerage services to the Commission?  

 

A#41 A response to this question is not relevant to providing the information requested in the solicitation.    

 

 

Q#42 Is there a reason the Commission wants pricing for data management for electric and natural 

gas invoices in dollar per unit of measurement instead of $ per account? 

 

A#42 Including the pricing allows the Commission to make a single payment for the supply and the 

consultant’s services.  However, the Commission provided in the Solicitation that as long as the 

standard fee template is completed, “Respondents may propose an alternate fee arrangement to 

perform the services described in this solicitation or any additional services their firm may offer.” 

 

 

Q#43 Are there environmental conditions the Commission is looking for the system to track? For 

weather normalization 

 

A#43 The Commission currently normalizes for weather based on a report for a single location.   

 

 

Q#44 Is there a need to reallocate funds to different departments within the Commission? 

 

A#44 No, please see the response to Q#36. 

 

 

Q#45 Is there a yearly fee the Commission pays to use EnergyCAP each year? If so what is the fee? 

 

A#45 The Commission’s access to EnergyCAP is obtained through the services of its current consultant. 

 

 

Q#46 What level of electric and natural gas usage is available? i.e. hourly, monthly, annual 
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A#46 Please see the response to Q#38. 

 

 

Q#47 We went through the list of SBEs approved by the Commission and none of them provide 

services outlined in the scope of work. Will this hinder us if we are not a SBE or cannot find 

one to subcontract any work to? 

 

A#47 If the respondent’s Utilization Certification and Plan fail to demonstrate a commitment to achieve 

the goal, respondent’s must satisfactorily demonstrate the failure occurred despite its Good Faith 

Efforts to fulfil the 15% participation goal.  In addition to those entities currently certified by the 

Commission, respondents are encouraged as part of its Good Faith Efforts to review the SBE and 

DBE registries at ODOT and the MBE and EDGE registries at DAS to identify any available 

certified firms.  

 

 

Q#48 Any specific reporting requirements the Commission may need?  (examples – Rate Analysis, 

Key Performance Indicators, Budget Variance, etc.) 

 

A#48 The Commission seeks the reporting capabilities made available through EnergyCAP, which 

include the following: 

 

Comparison Reports Show monthly use, cost and rates (current and previous year) 

Show annual use, cost and rates (multiple years) 

Usage and cost (between similar facilities)   

Show use and cost per square foot, etc. 

 

Monthly Audit Report Identify billing errors, unusual usages and rates, missing bills, 

unusual billing periods, etc.   

 

Utilities Overview Report Report by location showing all utility meters, account numbers, 

utility providers, site address, contact information, etc. 

 

   

The software should have the ability to provide data normalized for weather, calendarized data, 

and show greenhouse gas information.   

 

The Commission also requires the ability to export or paste data from the system to Excel tables. 

 

 

Q#49 Does the Commission have an existing EnergyStar profile?  

 

A#49 No. 

 

 

Q#50 Would the winning bidder be required to manage the Commission’s EnergyStar profile if the 

Commission is or will participate in EnergyStar? – (example- update properties, site & meter 

names, or add/remove sites/meters?) 

 

http://odotextrpt.dot.state.oh.us/ViewReport.aspx?reportPath=%2fprd%2fpreconstruction%2fpublic%2fsbe_vendor_list
https://www.dot.state.oh.us/Divisions/ODI/SDBE/Pages/DBE-Directory.aspx
https://eodreporting.oit.ohio.gov/searchMBE.aspx
https://eodreporting.oit.ohio.gov/searchEDGE.aspx
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A#50 No.   

 

 

Q#51 Would on-site Commission employee training be required, or could training be done 

remotely? 

 

A#51 Training performed remotely is acceptable.  

 

 

Q#52 If billing discrepancies are identified, would the Commission or the consultant be responsible 

for pursuing and resolving the billing error?  

 

A#52 The Consultant performs the majority of dispute resolution services to identify and address errors 

with the supplier and/or utility. 
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